
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

Port of Kennewick  
Regular Commission Business Meeting 

Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers (via GoToMeeting) 
350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick Washington 

 
Tuesday, December 8, 2020 

2:00 p.m. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments Dated November 20 and 27, 2020 
B. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments Dated December 2 and 4, 2020 
C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes November 10, 2020 

 
VII. EMERGENCY DELEGATION UPDATE (TIM/AMBER) 

 

VIII. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Friends of the Port (TANA)  
B. Waterfront Master Plan, Makers architecture and urban design (LARRY) 

 
IX. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Vista Field (LARRY) 
B. Chief Executive Officer Extension of Longevity Agreement; Resolution 2020-30 (LUCINDA) 
C. Upcoming Commission Meetings (BRIDGETTE) 
D. Director Reports (TANA /NICK/ LARRY / AMBER /LUCINDA/TIM) 
E. Commission meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
F. Non-Scheduled Items 

 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT    PLEASE SILENCE ALL NOISE MAKING DEVICES 

The Governor’s proclamation 20-28 regarding the Open Public Meetings Act and Public Records Act 
temporarily prohibits in-person public attendance at meetings subject to the OPMA. 

A GoToMeeting has been arranged to enable the public to listen and make public comments remotely.   
To participate remotely, lease use the following call-in information: 

Via GoToMeeting: 1-866-899-4679, Access Code: 835-803-277 

tel:+18668994679,,835803277




PORT OF KENNEWICK 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

    
      

   DRAFT NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

   

Page 1 of 10 

Commission Meeting recordings, with agenda items linked to corresponding audio, can be found on the 
Port’s website at:  https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/ 
 
Commission President Don Barnes called the Regular Commission Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. via 
GoToMeeting Teleconference.  
  
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL 
 
The following were present: 
 
Board Members: Commissioner Don Barnes, President (via telephone) 
 Skip Novakovich, Vice-President (via telephone) 
 Thomas Moak, Secretary (via telephone) 

  
Staff Members: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer (via telephone) 
 Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy Chief Executive Officer (via telephone) 
 Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate and Operations (via telephone) 
 Nick Kooiker, Chief Finance Officer (via telephone) 
 Larry Peterson, Director of Planning and Development (via telephone) 
 Lisa Schumacher, Special Projects Coordinator   

 Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant (via telephone) 
 Lucinda Luke, Port Counsel (via telephone) 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Commissioner Barnes led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve the Agenda as presented; Commissioner 
Moak seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
No comments were made. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated November 1, 2020 
Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $120,533.53 

B. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated November 10, 2020 
Expense Fund Voucher Number 102482 through 102519 for a grand total of $102,539.62 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes October 27, 2020 
 

https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/


PORT OF KENNEWICK   NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
     DRAFT  

 

Page 2 of 10 

MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; 
Commissioner Moak seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 
3:0.  
 
EMERGENCY DELEGATION UPDATE  
 Mr. Arntzen and Ms. Hanchette stated there is nothing to report for Emergency Delegation.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Adoption of 2021-2022 Budget  
Mr. Kooiker presented the final 2021-2022 Budget (EXHIBIT A) for Commission approval.   
 

Commissioner Barnes recessed the Regular Meeting at 2:08 p.m and declared an Open Public 
Hearing for discussion regarding 2021-2022 Budget.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No comments were made 

 
Commissioner Barnes closed the Public Hearing at 2:09 p.m. regarding the 2021-2022 Budget and 
reconvened the Regular Commission Meeting. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve Resolution 2020-24 adopting the Port of 
Kennewick’s 2021 and 2022 Budget as presented; and the board further ratifies and approves all 
action by Port officers and employees in furtherance hereof; Commissioner Moak seconded.   
 

Discussion: 
Commissioner Novakovich thanked Mr. Kooiker and staff for the work on the 2021-2022 Budget.  
The Budget represents Port of Kennewick to its constituents and shows the public what we can 
do with their money in a very conservative manner and how we apply our resources in the most 
effective way to serve the public.     
 
Commissioner Barnes commended staff and Mr. Kooiker for their preparation of the Budget. 
The Port is still in full swing although we are in the midst of challenging times with the COVID-
19 Pandemic.  This is a conservative Budget that will serve us well for the next two years. 
 

With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 
 

B. Levy Certification 
Mr. Kooiker presented Resolution 2020-25 certifying the Port’s Levy Certification, which allows 
the Port to collect taxes in 2021.  Resolution 2020-26 allows the Port to take the 1% statutory 
increase which is approximately $40,000-$50,000.    
 
Commissioner Novakovich asked for confirmation that the Commission can address Resolution 
2020-25 and 2020-26 together.  
 
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
     DRAFT  

 

Page 3 of 10 

Ms. Luke confirmed that the Commission can address Resolutions 2020-25 and 2020-26 in one 
motion and that is acceptable for the record.  
 

Commissioner Barnes recessed the Regular Meeting at 2:15 p.m. and declared an Open Public 
Hearing for discussion regarding the Levy Certification and the Tax Capacity.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No comments were made 

 
Commissioner Barnes closed the Public Hearing at 2:16 p.m. regarding the Levy Certification and the 
Tax Capacity and reconvened the Regular Commission Meeting. 

 
MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve Resolution 2020-25, certifying the Port of 
Kennewick’s tax levy for 2021 collections and Resolution 2020-26 increasing the Port of Kennewick’s 
tax levy capacity in 2021; Commissioner Moak seconded.   
 

Discussion: 
Commissioner Barnes stated in the past he has supported taking the 1% increase in the Port’s 
tax levy capacity; however, this year, he has had a change of heart and proposed to amend the 
motion: 
 

MOTION TO AMEND:  Commissioner Barnes moved to amend the motion by striking the reference 
to Resolution 2020-26;  Motion to amend dies for lack of second. 

 
Commissioner Moak stated there is a substantial need for the Port to take the 1% and we have 
identified throughout the year the needs of the Port in terms of Vista Field and other projects. 
As Mr. Kooiker stated, by taking the 1%, the Port receives $40,000-$50,000 and Commissioner 
Moak still thinks it is something that we have a need for and we should continue to do that.   
 
Commissioner Barnes stated Commissioner Moak’s point is well taken.  Commissioner Barnes 
stated his opposition to taking the 1%, but reiterated that the Motion is for Resolutions 2020-25 
and 2020-26 to be approved at the same time.  Commissioner Barnes is favor of the Resolution, 
although, as he stated earlier, he is opposed to the 1% increase and believes that money could 
be left in the hands of that tax payers. 
 

With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 
 

C. Increase in Tax Capacity  
The increase in tax capacity was discussed with Item B, Tax Levy. 

 
REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS   

A. Vista Field  
Mr. Peterson presented a tentative schedule related to Vista Field (EXHIBIT B) and discussed the 
Special Vista Field Meeting on December 11, 2020. 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
     DRAFT  

 

Page 4 of 10 

Commission and staff discussed the tentative schedule for Vista Field and the Special Meeting on 
December 11, 2020. 

 
B. Clover Island/Columbia Drive 

1. Kennewick Waterfront Master Plan Update 
Mr. Peterson reported that Makers is working on compiling the public input received 
throughout the entire outreach process into one conceptual Clover Island Master Plan.  Makers 
will be making a short presentation regarding the conceptual layout at the December 8, 2020 
Commission Meeting.   
 

2. Boathouse Update 
Mr. Arntzen outlined a history of the live-aboard question posed by boat house owners at the 
Clover Island Yacht Club.  Mr. Arntzen discussed the letter to Commodore Dan Bunn of the 
Clover Island Yacht Club and memo to Marie Mosely, City Manager for the City of 
Kennewick, which were included in the Agenda Packet.  Mr. Arntzen stated the Yacht Club 
leases the building and dock from the Port of Kennewick; however, the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers and the City have specific rules and ordinances in place which state no live-aboards 
are allowed.   
 
Ms. Hanchette stated the Port is very strict on the no live-aboard policy for the Clover Island 
Marina. 
 
Commissioner Novakovich thinks we should go forward with the correspondence and support 
staff and Mr. Arntzen on his efforts.  Commissioner Novakovich believes this could be a 
liability issue and the City is probably the right agency to enforce the no live-abord rules. 

 
Commissioner Moak inquired what the risk or liability is to the Port regarding this matter and 
if the risk is to the owner of the boathouse or the Port. 
 
Ms. Luke stated the USACE could seek to enforce their agreement and the Port would be 
responsible for non-compliance and is at risk of having an enforcement action related to the 
agreement.  Separate from that, if there were a catastrophe, such as a fire that occurred in the 
marina or boathouse area, there would be liability to the Port, property owners, City or any 
entity that might have involvement in ownership operations of the marina.  
 
Commissioner Moak thinks the letters are appropriate and approves of sending the letters to 
the Clover Island Yacht Club and the City of Kennewick.    
 
Commissioner Barnes is supportive of sending these letters and encouraged staff to send an 
annual reminder of the Port’s terms and conditions of the lease agreements.    
 
Mr. Arntzen thanked the Commission for their unwavering support regarding this matter. 
 
 
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
     DRAFT  

 

Page 5 of 10 

C. South Verbena 
Ms. Hanchette reported that the life estate tenant at the 50 South Verbena property recently passed 
away and inquired what direction the Commission would like staff to take regarding the property.  
The Port purchased the 4 ½ acre parcel in the late 1990’s and the property is zoned industrial and 
there are several buildings in need of significant repair located on the property.  Ms. Hanchette is 
currently having the property appraised. 
 
The Commission and staff discussed the various options related to the property. 
 

It is the consensus of the Commission to surplus the property at 50 South Verbena.   
 

D. City of Richland Interlocal Agreement 
Mr. Arntzen presented Resolution 2020-29, approving an Interlocal Agreement between the Port 
of Kennewick and the City of Richland for the Center Parkway project.  Mr. Arntzen stated the 
funds have been identified in the 2021-2022 Budget, which was approved earlier in the Meeting.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments were made. 

 
MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve Resolution 2020-29 adopting the Interlocal 
Agreement between the Port of Kennewick and the City of Richland related to the Center Parkway 
Improvement project; and to take all other action necessary to close this transaction; and further 
ratifies and approves all action by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof; Commissioner 
Barnes seconded.   
 

Discussion: 
Commissioner Novakovich believes this is a nice way to partner with a jurisdictional partner 
and the area is located in the Port district. Commissioner Novakovich thinks this is something 
we should support and stated it is a benefit to the Port and our constituents and the project is 
already in the Budget.   
 
Commissioner Moak thinks this is an important economic development project and he worked 
on the Center Project during his time at the City of Kennewick.  Commissioner Moak thinks this 
is a good way to partner on an economic development project that will benefit both Kennewick 
and Richland and will help the transportation issues on Steptoe and Columbia Center Boulevard. 
 
Commissioner Barnes agrees with Commissioners Moak and Novakovich and stated it is a sound 
project with clear economic benefits.  Commissioner Barnes appreciates Commissioner Moak’s 
comments about traffic concerns and stated the project should relieve the congestion at Steptoe 
and Columbia Center Boulevard. 
 

With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 
 
 
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
     DRAFT  

 

Page 6 of 10 

RECESS 
Commissioner Barnes called for a recess for at 3:56 p.m. until 4:00 p.m. 

 
Commissioner Barnes reconvened the meeting at 4:00 p.m.  
 

E. Formal Approval of CEO’s Goal #3, Vista Field Owner’s Association 
Mr. Kooiker reported the Commission recently passed Resolution 2020-22 approving the Vista 
Field Owners Association documents, which was listed as a 2017-2018 goal for the CEO.  
Resolution 2020-22 formally accepts the goal as completed.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments were made. 

 
MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve Resolution 2020-27, approving completion 
of goal #3 of the 2017-2018 CEO’s goals and objectives; Commissioner Moak seconded.   
 

Discussion: 
Commissioner Barnes stated Resolution 2020-27 is straight forward and the Commission 
approved the Vista Field Owners Association documents which was part of the CEO’s 2017-
2018 goals.  
 

With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 
 

F. Chief Executive Officer 2021-2022 Goals and Objectives 
Mr. Kooiker presented the 2021-2022 goals and objectives for Mr. Arntzen, Chief Executive 
Officer.  Exhibit B combines the remaining three goals from 2019-2020 with the new goals for 
2021-2022.  Mr. Kooiker presented twelve potential goals for the Commission to review, modify 
or add an additional goal.    
 
Commissioner Barnes stated with the rapid changes of COVID-19, he suggested combining goal 
number 1: back to work plan and goal number 10, prepare a COVID-19 economic-impact analysis. 
 
Commissioner Novakovich believes the list is comprehensive and well thought out and he 
appreciates how the goals conform to Work Plan and Budget. Commissioner Novakovich believes 
the back to work plan for COVID-19 and the economic-impact analysis are separate issues. 
 
Commissioner Moak concurs with Commissioner Novakovich’s comments.  Additionally, he 
thinks goal number three and number five should be removed.  Commissioner Moak does not think 
the Port needs to renegotiate a new contract with TRIDEC (goal number eleven).  TRIDEC does a 
lot of great things for the Tri-Cities, but he does not think they do a lot that benefits the Port of 
Kennewick directly.    
 
Commissioner Barnes concurs with Commissioner Moak regarding goals number three, five, and 
eleven.  Commissioner Barnes stated things will change over the next two years and suggested    
retaining some level of flexibility to CEO’s goals if something comes up. 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
     DRAFT  

 

Page 7 of 10 

Commissioner Novakovich believes TRIDEC should be a performance-based contract, because 
we pay a large amount and generally do not see anything in return.    
 
Commissioner Barnes suggested revising goal number four, from present a report for the Vista 
Field team to implementation of the Vista Field team.  Commissioner Barnes asked for more 
clarification regarding goal number twelve, complete Laserfiche process. 
 
Mr. Kooiker stated Laserfiche has endless capabilities and this goal is specifically related to the 
contract work flow, contracts, and digital signatures, which he hopes to have implemented by 
spring.   
 

It is the Consensus of the Commission to remove goals number three, five, and eleven and revise goal 
number four to read implementation of the Vista Field team.  

 
Commissioner Moak shared three suggestions for goals: 

1. Update the Port’s Rules of Policy and Procedures and incorporate any new policies 
approved by Commission; 

2. Develop a plan for professional Human Resources (HR) services to deal with issues 
between and among staff, between and among Commissioners, and between and among 
staff and Commissioners, and other HR needs as required; 

3. Develop a plan to work through the existing communication issues between and among 
Commissioners, and between and among Commissioners and staff.  To improve overall 
communication within the agency to enable the Port to move forward with a unified 
purpose.  

 
Mr. Kooiker stated from an auditing perspective, number one and two are quantifiable; however, 
number three would need to include how the measurement was set and how it was achieved. 
 
Commissioner Barnes thinks these three concerns could fall under one umbrella, where we could 
bring in a professional for a “governance audit” to review the Rules of Policy and Procedures, best 
practices, and overall function and efficiency of the Port and assist in facilitating healthy 
communication. 
 
Commissioner Novakovich agrees and would like to see it rolled into one goal and have an 
assessment done of where we are at and where we should be.  The outcome should be drafting a 
new set of Rules of Policy and Procedures document.  
 
Commissioner Moak supports all of the concepts and asked staff to revise it so that it could be 
measurable and completable and help us move forward in a better way.    
 
Mr. Arntzen appreciates the discussion and proposed moving forward with the nine proposed goals 
that the Commission agrees on.  Mr. Arntzen would like for staff to review the Rules of Policy and 
Procedures with the Human Resources element, with the intent of bringing it back as a quantifiable 
goal and then have two additional goals in the future.  
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
     DRAFT  

 

Page 8 of 10 

The Commission agrees with Mr. Arntzen’s suggestions. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments were made. 

 
MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve Resolution 2020-28, approving the CEO’s 
2021-2022 goals and objectives; and further ratify and approve all action by port officers and 
employees in furtherance hereof; Commissioner Moak seconded.   
 

Discussion: 
Commissioner Barnes thanked Mr. Arntzen and Mr. Kooiker for their work on this document 
and stated it has been a very productive discussion and he looks forward to seeing these whittled 
down as we go forward. 
 
Commissioner Moak would like to see these goals accomplished and believes that having goals 
set and getting them accomplished goes a long way.  He understands that Mr. Arntzen wants to 
work on projects that he knows the Commission is in favor of and supports; and Commissioner 
Moak believes we have helped do that by approving the 2021-2022 goals.   
 

With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 
 

G. Commission Meetings 
Ms. Scott inquired if the Commission would like to cancel the November 24, 2020 Regular 
Commission Business Meeting. 
 

It is the Consensus of the Commission to cancel the November 24, 2020 Regular Commission Business 
Meeting.  
 

H. Director Reports 
Ms. Hanchette shared that Victor Palencia and Nena Cosic, owner of European Desserts by Nena 
are joining forces and opening a new food trailer, Culture Shock, which will be located under the 
Latino Mural at Columbia Gardens.  The food truck plans on being open Thursday through Sunday 
for brunch and dinner. 
 
Mr. Anrtzen applauded the Commission on their flexibility and collaboration regarding the 2021-
2022 CEO goals.    
  

I. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings. 
 

J. Non-Scheduled Items 
Ms. Hanchette stated the Port will be lighting the Veterans Christmas tree in The Willows this 
month.     
 
Ms. Luke reported that the Public Hearing related to Commissioner Barnes’ appeal on 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
     DRAFT  

 

Page 9 of 10 

recommended action on November 20, 2020 will need to be rescheduled due to Mr. Comfort’s 
illness (Commissioner Barnes legal counsel).  Ms. Luke worked with Judge Kallas and Ms. Scott 
to determine a new hearing date and identified Friday, December 4th at 9:30 a.m. as a potential 
date.  Ms. Luke inquired if the Commission was available.   
 
The Commissioners are available for the Special Meeting on December 4, 2020 at 9:30 a.m. 
 
Commissioner Moak inquired if staff would review the location of Mr. Palencia’s food truck, 
because it looks as though it is blocking the view of the Latino Mural.   
 
Ms. Hanchette stated the food truck is parked by the Mural and if someone wanted to view the 
Mural, they are able to walk around and view the artwork.  Ms. Hanchette stated we located it there 
because it serves two purposes:  it kept the food trailer out of the courtyard area, which has limited 
parking and is close to the Monarcha and Bartholomew tasting rooms and the other tasting rooms.  
Additionally, we could add a power pedestal more readily to that location and generate more traffic 
to the Mural area.  Ms. Hanchette stated if it is the Commission’s desire to move the food trailer, 
then staff will find another location for Mr. Palencia. 
 
Commissioner Moak understands Ms. Hanchette’s comments and the benefits to Columbia 
Gardens; however, he is concerned that we are blocking a piece of artwork.  Commissioner Moak 
would like the Commission to look at the placement and possibly have the Latino Mural 
Committee review as well.     
 
Mr. Arntzen will work with Ms. Hanchette on the placement of the trailer and asked if the 
Commission would take a look at the location and share their thoughts via email to Ms. Scott. 
 
No further comments were made. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No comments were made. 
 
COMMISSION COMMENTS 
No comments were made. 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned 5:21 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   NOVEMBER 10, 2020 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
     DRAFT  

 

Page 10 of 10 

 
APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
  

      
Don Barnes, President 
 
 

       
Skip Novakovich, Vice President 
 

 
 

      
 Thomas Moak, Secretary 

 

 



  

          AGENDA REPORT  
 

TO:      Port Commission 

  

FROM:    Lucinda J. Luke, Port Counsel   

 

MEETING DATE:    December 8, 2020  

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 2020-30 Renewal of CEO Longevity Agreement 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I. REFERENCE(S):  See CEO Employment Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 
See also CEO’s November 30, 2020 letter to Commission attached hereto as Exhibit 2. 

 

II. FISCAL IMPACT:  See Longevity Agreement terms. 
 

III. DISCUSSION:  The CEO’s Employment Agreement includes a Longevity Agreement at 
Exhibit “B”.  The Longevity Agreement was renewed in 2015 for a second five-year term 
ending December 31, 2020.  In order to maintain stability in the key position of CEO for 
the Port, the Port has utilized a retention agreement.   
 

 
IV. RECOMMENDATION:  Adoption of Resolution 2020-30 renewing the CEO’s 

Longevity Agreement for a third five-year term through December 31, 2025. 
 

V. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:   

Motion:   I hereby move approval of Resolution 2020-30 renewing the CEO’s 
Longevity Agreement for a five-year term ending December 31, 2025. 















































November 30, 2020 
 
Commissioner Don Barnes 
Commissioner Skip Novakovich 
Commissioner Tom Moak 
 
Commissioners: 
 
This e-mail is my request for the port commission to renew the longevity provision contained in my 
employment agreement.  Prior to making this request, however, I wish to thank the commission for my 
recent performance review where the commission rated my performance as “exceptional”.  Thank you 
for your continued confidence in me. 
 
The longevity provision provides that should I remain employed by the port for five years, I am awarded 
PTO compensation.  This provision has been in the employment agreement for two previous terms of five 
years each (from my age 50 to 55; and from age 55 to 60).  I will reach age 60 in January; and I will reach 
the conclusion of the second five-year longevity term at the end of December.  Hence, this is my request 
to extend the longevity provision for an additional five-year term.    
 
Thank you for your consideration.  I look forward to continuing to work for the commission and with staff 
to implement the port’s important projects. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Tim Arntzen 
CEO 



  

PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

Resolution No. 2020-30 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

APPROVING THE RENEWAL OF THE CEO’S LONGEVITY AGREEMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Chief Executive Officer’s Employment Agreement includes a 
Longevity Agreement.  The Longevity Agreement was renewed in 2015 for a second five-year 
term ending December 31, 2020.  In order to maintain stability in the key position of CEO for the 
Port, the Port has utilized a retention agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 30, 2020, the Chief Executive Officer requested the 
Commission renew the longevity provision contained in his employment agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of 
the Port of Kennewick hereby approves renewing the CEO’s Longevity Agreement for a five-
year term ending December 31, 2025. 
 
 ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick this 8th day of 
December, 2020.  

PORT of KENNEWICK 
 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
 

 By:  _______________________________ 
  DON BARNES, President 
       
 By:   _______________________________ 
  SKIP NOVAKOVICH, Vice President 
 
 By: _______________________________ 
  THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 




